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. [21,22] ‘Tt is not alleged in either of
the first two counts that the decedent had
by a proper instrument in writing severed
his ownership of the land and of the oil
therein, if that can be done; and as at the
death of decedent, oil that had not then
in fact been severed from the lands was a
part of, the realty, and. -descended to his
heirs, and could not pass by oral contract
to devise; consequently counts I and 2 al-
lege a cause of.action only if interpreted
and applied to limit.the claimed royalties
to those due for oil severed from the lands
prior to the death of the decedent. See

United States v. Noble, 237 U.S. 74, text =

page 80, 35:S.Ct. 532,59 L.Ed. 844.

* The order sustaining the demurrer and
‘dismissing the ¢ause of action as tg:counts
3 and 4 was not error,but as to counts 1
and 2 the order is affirmed without preju-
dice to amend. ' : '
I 1t.i8 so ordered.

TERRELL, C. J, and WHITFIELD,
BROWN, BUFORD, and THOMAS, JJ.,

concur,
. T |
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In fe DONNELLY'S ESTATE.
" GOLD v. ASHBY et al.

Supreme Court of Florida.
- July 15, 1938.

. On Rehearing April: 11, 1939,
: Rehearing Den;ed April 28, 1939,

1. Wills €164(3)

" That will gives entire gstate, except spe-
cific legacies to old friends, to person accus-
ed . of undue influence, to exclusion of rela-
tives, is a circumstance rightfully consid-
pred in determining undue influence,

2. WIlis €386 . :
-n will contest, probate court's eonclu-
gion on:conflicting evidence will not be dis-
turbed mnless the legal effect of the proof
. has been misapprehended, or there is a
lack of evidence to.support the findings.
'3, Wills &1, ‘ L
| The right to dispose of property by wilt
ghould be carefully guarded, and c?urts

- Mitchell D. Price, - Charl
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:should - be reluctant to undo after: - death

what testator sought to accomplish.

4. Wills ¢&=166(1) _
In will contest, evidence of eircum

stances surrounding execution of will, in-

cluding quarrel of testatrix and her business
representative with relatives of testatrix,
held to authorize admitting will in favor of
such representatlve to probate, as against

-contention of undue Influence.

WHITFIELD, and CHAPMAN, JJ., dis-
senting. '
—tprererw

- Appeal from Circuit Court, Dadé Coun-
ty; Paul D. Barns, Judge. =~
Proceeding in the matter of the estate of
Mary A. Donnelly, deceased, wherein the
will was admitted to probate, Glenn W.

‘Gold was appointed executor,-and. Walter

S. Ashby and others filed petition for revo-
cation of the probation of the will. . From
a decree of the circuit court for petitioners,
the executor appeals. :

Reversed.

es W. ‘Zaring,
and Robert S. Florence, all of Miami, for
appellant. .

Stanley Milledge and Robert G. Gilroy,
both. of Miami, and Stockton, Ulmer &
Murchison, of Jacksonville, for appellees.

CIIAPMAN, Justice, g :
The transcript herein shows that Honor-

‘able W. F. Blanton, County Judge of Dade

County, Florida, on November 13, 1934, in
full compliance with all statutory require-
ments, made and entered . -an order ad-
mitting to probate the last will and testa-

.ment of Mary A. Donnelly, such will being

as follows: : .
. #I, Mary A. Donnelly, of the City of
Miami, Dade County, Florida being of
sound mind and memory, do hereby make,
publish and declare this to be my Last
Wilt and Testament; hereby revoking all
former Wills, Codicils, or Testamentary
Dispositions heretofore made by me.
“First: I order and direct that my Ex-
ecutor, hereinafter named, pay all my just
debts and funeral expenses as soon after
my decease as conveniently may-be, and I
heteby arder and direct that I be buried
in the City Cemetery -at Miami, Florida,

-in the same lot with the late Richard Ash-

by; and my sister, Marggret Ashby,
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. “Second: T give and bequeath. any ori-
ental rugs, table linen, dishes, silver, and
clothing whick I may possess at the time
of my death, together with the sum of
Two Thousand and . No/100 - ($2,000.00)
Dollars in cash, to Mrs, Gussie Budge, of
323 N. E. 27th Street, Miami, Florida. .
“Third: I give and bequeath my .oath
invalid table .and my lady’s : Mahogany
desk, now located at 334 N, E. 22nd Street,
Miami, Florida, to J. Winifred Gold of
1219 Lisbon Street, Coral Gables, Florida,
- “Fourth: I give 'and bequeath all of my
jewelry.to Margaret Gold, of Miami, Flor-
ida, ‘daughter of the -above mentioned Js
Winifred Gold, - . .. - - -
© “Fifth: 1 give'and bequeath .to .Mrs,
Clara Hunt, of 334 Ann Street, Hartford,
Connecticut,- the 'sum - of Two Thousand
and No/100 ($2,000.00) Dollars cash. -
- HSixth: All the rest, residue and remain-
der of my estate, both real and personal;
wherever located or in whatever farm the
same may. be, I give, devise and bequeath
unto: William "H. Gold of 1219 Lishon
Street, Coral Gables, Florida, or:to his son,

Glenn W, Gold, of Miami, Florida, in the.

event the said William H. Gold should pre-
<ecease me, o

“Seventh: I hereby. constitute and :ap-
point Glenn ‘'W.. Gold of Miami, Florida,;
as Executor of this my Last Will and
Testament, and I direct that he serve as
such without being required to post,or file
bond as Executor. BT

“In testimony whercof, I -have hereunto
subscribed -my name and affixed my seal,
the 15th day of November, /n the year of
our- Lord One Thousand .Nine Hundred
and Thirty Three. . .. . 1 ., ...

e i Mary: A Donnelly: [Seal} s

“We do hereby certify that on’this 15(H
day of :November, A.:D, 1933, at- Miami;
‘Dade County, Florida, the above hamed
Mary A. Donnelly, to us personally known;
being then .of sound mind and :mémory,
signed, ipublished and - declared :¢he | fore-
8oing t¢ beither. Last; Will and Testament
in qur presence and we, 3t her request and
in her presence and in the presence, qf each
other, hereunto, -subscribe - our Hames, as
witnesses thereto.., ;. 5 5
dbe o 1 o “C.E. Courtney
: . “R. E. Kunkel”

.On _June 26, 1935, a petition for revoca-
tion of the probation of the will, supra,
‘was filed in the County Judge’s: Court. of
Dade .County, Florida, on the. part. of

Walter: S, Ashby, Lijllian M. Gaby, Rich-
ard Ashby Marriott, and Martina M. Smith,
against William H. Gold, Glenn W. Gold,
J. Winifred Gold, Mrs.. Gussie Budge, and
Mrs. Clara Hunt, "The petition seeking a
revocation of the will alleged, among oth-
er things, that at the time of the execution
of the-will by Mary A. Donnelly on No-
vember 15, "1933, a confidential relation-
ship existed between William H. Gold and
the testator; that William H. Gold active-
ly procured and participated: directly and
indirectly - in the preparation and execu-
tion of the will of Mary A. Donnelly and in
which William H. Gold was the chief ben-
eficiary; also; (a) Mary A. Donnelly lack:
ed testamentary capacity; and (b) Mary
A. Donnelly was anduly influenced by Wil-
liam H. Gold.” The respondents answered
and denied each and every the material al-
legations of the petition: L "
- Considerable testimony was taken before
the Honofable W, F, Blanton, and after
hearing counsel for the respective parties,
on, March 23, 1937, made and entered an
order overruling and denying the petition
for the revocation of the order admitting to
probate the Will ‘of Mary A. Donnelly.
The material portions of his said order are,
t “The Court- finds 'that William H, Gold
was the chief beneficiary. under the said
will of Mary A.-Donnelly, dated Novem-
ber 15, 1933, and that except. for the execu-
tion thereof he would.not have been 2 ben=
eficiary of the Estate of said Mary A. Don,
nelly; that the evidence adduced by the
Petitioners .made out a prima facie case
of undue. influence;, and raised the pre-.
sumption of undue influence being exerted
by said, William H. Gold over said Mary .
f\.. Donnelly in the preparation, and exe-
cution of her ‘siid will: ~And that, ‘there-
fore, by reason ‘of said ' presutiptiof, " thé
burden pf proof shifted from the contest-
ants, ‘or, petitioners, t0 the respondent, or
proponefit, of said :will to adduce sufficient
testimony to at least equalize or overcome
the prespmption of undue influence and pri-
ma facie case fnade out by the contestants,
or petitioners, "7

:1“The Court finds that the respondent,
chief. beneficiary under said will, has ad-.
duced sufficient testimony to equalize, .if
not overcome, the testimony, presumption of
undue. influence, and prima facie case made
by the contestants, .or petitioners;;and that
from all of  the testimony, submitted the .
Court cannot say. that the. said” will of
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Mary A. Donnelly,’ dated November 15,
1933, was the result of undue influence.”

The  contestants, viz., Walter S. Ashhy,
Lillian M. Gaby, Martina Smith and Jose-
phine Marriott Kipp, took an appeal from
the order aforesaid to the Circuit Court of
Dade County, Florida, when an. order of
reversal was entered on May 28, 1937, and
in so doing said:

ok ok * _

- “Richard Ashby was the father of Walt-
er S. Ashby and Lillian Gaby, and the
grandfather  of Martina M. Smith and
Josephine Marriott Kipp, the petitioners
herein. Richard Ashby was married three
times. . By the first wife he had ali of his
children.:, His second wife was the sister
of Mary Donnelly. His third wife died
before. the matters .involved herein. had
transpired. From the time Richard Ashby
married her sister, Mary Donnelly had
made her home with the Ashbys. After
her sister died she continized managing the
tiome the same as she had while her sister
lived and continited doing this during the
lifée of his third wife. -

“For about forty years she lived in the
same house with Richard Ashby and min-
istered to his wants. She was 'a lone
woman without relatives of her own. She
worked 'in’ the Ashby home without stated
compensation, and in recognition of her
sérvices to him, in 1924 Richard Ashby set
tip-a trust to provide her a home and $250.-
00 a month so long as she lived, During
this time, friendly relations existed between
Mary Donnelly and the other members of
the Ashby family, and Mary Donnelly made
her will giving all she had to Richard
Ashby, or if he predeceased her, to his
estate. I -
" “In 1924 when Richard ‘Ashby created
the trust for Miss Donnelly he was trans-
acting all his_business through First Trust
& Savings Bank, but in 1927 he took his
business to W. H. Gold. . In 1931 Mary
Donnelly also began having Gold Jook aft-
er her investments. In October 1932,
Walter |S. Ashby came to Miami with his
family and took up his residence at his
father’'s home. Shortly after that, Lillian
M. Gaby came to Miami with her family
and took.up her residence at her father's
home. In February 1933 Walter S. Ash-
by and Lillian M. Gaby procured several
other persons to petition the lower court to
adjudge their father insane, and on March
1, 1933, Richard' S. Ashby was adjudicated
insane. Two days later the lower court ap-
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pointed Walter S. Ashby ‘and Lillian M.
Gaby guardians of their father and of his
estate. ‘ :

“The guardians. promptly demanded of
W. H. Gold all of Richard Ashby’s assets
in his possession including. the securities
and mortgages Richard Ashby set aside
for Mary Donnelly in 1932 to provide her
with additional income, which securities
were for some reason in the possession of
W. H. Gold. Gold refused to comply with
their request, but instead delivered these
assets to the County Judge’s Court, and
upon advice of counsel recorded ‘the As-
sighment of the Mortgages that had been
turned over to Miss Donnelly, wheteupon
the petitioners filed suit in the -Circuit
Court against Gold and.Miss Donnelly to
compel delivery of all these assets to peti-
tioners. - - = ' :

%This suit was terminated by a final.de-
cree-of rourt agreed to by the parties and
a release executed by Mary Donnelly. By
the final decree the 1932 trust’iwas termis -
nated, and ‘in lieu thereof she received the
Magnant -mortgage for $6,200.00, which
had then been in default of two or more
years, and $1,300.00 in cash. In July 1933
Richard "Ashby died. ; :

" 41t appears that the “1932 trust’ for Mary
Donnélly - was procured 'by 'W. H. Gald
from Richard Ashby and that he held the
trust res in his possession. The evidence
does ' not show that the securities for this

41932 trust’ in the hands of Gold was

handled ‘with. much-formality. The trust
instrument appears to be a letter of a prec-
atory nature signed by Richard. Ashby
addressed to W. H. Gold. It appears how-

‘ever, that Gold held the securities, which

were not inconsequential in value, Possi-
bly he gave Ashby a receipt.- Maybe he
gave Miss Donnelly a receipt: . The se-
curities appear to have been in his name ‘as
trustee’. : .

“Regardless of other matters it appears
that W. H. Gold has had experience with
the matter of other people’s wills and is not
engaged in the practice of law. These
particular wills seem to be those of elderly
people, He testifies he had drawn four or
five such wills and his attorney festifies that
he (the attorney) drew such named wills.
I take it that they were both right. They
drew them together. I likewise take it
that Miss Donnelly's will was likewise
drawn by them both. Gold drew it for
Miss Donnelly and the.attorney was ac-
commodating Gold.  The attorney was
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usually paid for such :services by *other
business’ from Gold, but Gold paid him for
drawing Miss Donnelly’s will—but after
her death, He at this time did not néglect
the attorney nor did he wait to compensate
him with other business. . The will was
now to take effect—to be probated It was
to take life and speak for the dead, and the
Golds were beneficiaries.

“It is evident that Richard Ashby as he
grew older grew weaker in mind and body
and depended more on Gold who was his
advisor; - that Gold in turn became the
trusted friend of Mary Donnelly; -hence
the ‘1932 trust’ for Mary Donnelly. When
Richard Ashby ‘was proceeded against by
his. children because of senile dementia,
and then when Mary Donnelly and Gold
were sued jointly, Gold. was solicitous of
Miss :Donnelly’s weifare. They were de-
fendants together, -They settled the suit

against them by Ashby s guardjans on Aprtl ;
‘ . troduce evidence . sufficient .to offset any.

*On October 30 1933 Gol dq wrote MISS' inference or presumptxou of undue in-

.He:

29, 1933,

Donnelly a masterpiece of a letter.:
wrote ‘her abott a matter that was of the
most private personal :nature—gbout a
matter that was to speak for Miss Donnel-

ly after she was dead, at a time when she’

could not expect to live much longer.. He

must have known her well or he would not

have:written her about this: exclusive .pri-
vate personal matter—he a real estate bro-
ker: and money lender. . He offered -to do
something for. her that was of a profes-

sional nature yet without charge, and fur-

thermore to secure for her. recognized pro-
fessional  scrutiny. - He was experienced,
for ‘he had done it for many others. He

proved it; he sent by his daughter a copy

of a will drawn for an old lady of 85. It
was easy and it worked, -with the result
that the. services were rendered.as prom-

ised and'thereby the will was for the bene-

fit.of two devoted beneficient friefids to
the extent of $2000 each, with Mrs. Gold
and Miss Gold. receiving only tokens of
friendship as evidenced by ‘jewelry and

W. H. Gold only taking the residue and.
rcmamder of the ‘estate, and the. son only

actmg as executor.

“From- the foregomg facts and ntherr

facts appearing by :the: record, it appeafs
that W. H.' Gold - brought h1mse1f info
favor of Miss- Donnelly by sedulous and
servile attention to the art of pleasing this

elderly maiden lady; that the relationship -
between W.. H. Gold ‘and :Miss Donnelly

was such in relation to.the will heretofore
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admitted to probate as to give rise to a
presumption of undue .influence of pro-
curing the making of himself a beneficiary -
which has pot been overcome or met by
the proof.

“It is ordered that a decree of revcrsal
upon the appeal be entered -accordingly.” -

From the décree as entered by the Cir-".

- cuit Court of Dade County, Florida, Wil--

liam H. Gold has perfected his appeal here
and through counsel presents four ques--
tIOl’lS for decision. -

"1st. Was the relation between W:Iham"

“H. Gold and Mary A, Donnelly of such a-

confidential character as to nge him doml-
nation over her? ‘

2nd.  Was William H, Gold actwe in
the preparatmn of the will to such an ex-
tent that his activities interfered with or’
affected the distribution of her estate?

3rd. Did the proponents of ‘the will in-

fluence that might arise from these facts?

~4th.  If undue influence is presumed
against’ William H. Gold. “becausé of his
confidential relation and his activities with:
respect to the will, does this unfavorable’
presumption extend to other legatees not
in confidential relations with testatrix and
who. had nothing to do with the prepara-‘
tion or execution of the will? - . .

“While counsel for the appeilees!in: theu'
bnefs discuss (a) evidence to sustain find- -
ings of undue influence; (b) presumption-
of undue influence; {c) the law of undue
influence; and (e) the legal effect of undue
mﬁuence; it is possible that the several
assignments discussed in the briefs:can be
censidered under- the single question :-From
the law. applicable to the case at bar and.
from the evidence adduced by the respec- .
tive parties, was the chancellor below au-.
thorized to. .make and. enter the decree ap--
pealed fromp .

Section - 9 of Chapter 16103 Acts of
1933, commonly teferred ito as- the “Pro-
bate ‘Act”, provides that a will is void if'
the execution thereof is procured by frand,

_ duress, mistake, menage, or any undue in-

fluence, , Likewise, any part of a will is
void .if sa procurqd Hut the remainder of
the will not so procured shall be valid, if
the same be not invalid for other reasons.
The will here is dated November 15, 1933,
This ‘Court has had before it on many
occasions the question of “undue influence”
as it applies to wills. In the casé of Es-
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tate of Clara R. Starr v. Wilson, 125 Fla.
536, text pages 543, 544, 170 So. 620, text.
page 623, when treating this subject said :

“To authorize a court to deny or re-”
voke the probate of a will on the ground
of undue influence, there must he active
use of such:undue influence for the pur-
pose of securing the execution of the will
to such an extent as to coerce the mind of
the testator, so that it cannot be said that
the testator was acting voluntarily, of his
or her own free will and volition, Con-
fidential - relations between the testator in
his lifetime and the legatce who offers the.

will for probate are not alone sufficient to.

raise a presumption of undue influence and
cast the burden of proof upon the propo-
nent in that regard, Bancroft v. Otis, 91
Ala, 279, 8 So. 286, 24 Am.St.Rep. 904,

“In the case -of Newman v. Smith, 77
Fla. 633, 667, 668, 82 So. 236, this court
stated: ‘Undue influence comprehends
over persuasion, cpcrcion, or force that
destroys or hampers the free agency and’
will power of the téstator. Mere afféction
or attachment, or a desire to gratify the
wishes of one beldved, respected, and trust-
ed, may hot, of itself, amount 'to undue
influence " affecting the testamentary ca-
pacity of a ‘testator! o

“Tn Peacock v, DuBois, 90 Fla. 162, 105
S6.'321: "To tonstitute “indue influence,”
the mind * * * must be so controlled or
affected by persuasion -of pressure, artful
or. frandulent contrivances, or by the’ in-
sidions influencés of-persons in close con-
fidential retations with him, that he is not
feft to ‘act intelligently, understandingly,
and voluntarily, but ¥ * * subject to the’
will or purpose of another. . ® * * .~
~#4Ph rile seems to be well settled that
undue*inflence, justifying the setting aside
of ‘will, deed, or othet contract must be
such ‘as’ to ‘dethromie the free agency of
the person making it and rendering his
act the product of the will of another in-
stead of his own’” (Emphasis supplied).

I Peacock v. DuBois, 00 Fla. 162, text
164-166, 105 So. 321, text 322, this Court
said: : : - :

“Does the testimony show fraud and un-
due influence? Fraud ‘and undue influerice
are not, strictly speaking, - synonymous,
though undue influence has been classified
as either a species of fraud or a kind of
duress, and in either instance it is treated
as fraud in general. Heath v, Capital
Savings Bank & Trust Co., 79 Vt. 30L,
4 A. 1127; Cooper v. Harlow, 163 Mich.-
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210, 128 N.W. 259; .Grove v.. Spiker, 72
Md. 300, 20 A. 144; Frush wv. Green. 86
Md. 494, 39 A. 863, 866. - o

“In Howard v, Farr, 115 Minn. 86, 131
N.W. 1071, the court said: “To consti-
tute “undue influence,” the mind * ¥ *
must be so controlled ‘or affected by per-
suasion or pressure, artful or fraudulent
contrivances, or by the insidious influences’
of “persons in close confidential  relations
with him, that he is net left to act intelli-
gently, understandingly, and ' voluntarily,
but * * * subject to the will or purposes

.of another.! .

““Tn Myatt v. Myatt, 149 N.C. 137, 62
S.E. 887, the court said ‘that, To consti-
tute ‘undue influerice,” it is unnecessary
that moral turpitude ‘or impfoper motive
should exist, and if one, from the best of
motives, having obtained a dominant in-
fluence over a grantot’s mind, induces him
to execute a deed or other instrument ma-
terially affecting his rights, which he
would not have otherwise executed, so’ ex-
ercising . the .influence -obtained that the
grantor’s will is effaced or supplanted, the
instrumént is fraudulent. - :

- “In Prescoit 'v. Johnson, 91 Minn. 273,
97 N.W. 891, the court held that: ‘Undue
influence which will invalidate a gift, must
be something which destroys the free
agency of the donors and substitutes there-
for the will of another. ‘What constitutes
such undue influence” cannot be precisely
defined, and -each case must be' determined
upon a consideration of its special facts.
The means employed 'and extent of the
influence are immaterial if their effect be
to destroy the free agency of the donor:
The ultimate fact of undue influence may,.
and in many. cases can only, be established
by circumstantial evidence. - -

“The rule seetms to be well ‘settled that
undue influence justifying the setting aside
of will, deed, or other contract must be
such as to dethrone the free agency of a.

. person making it and rendering his act the

product of the will of another instead of
his own, The character of the transaction,
the mental condition of the person whose
act is in gquestion, and the relationship of
the parties concerned to each other, are
all elements that may be taken into con-
sideration in applying the rule.. Johnson:
v. Farrell, 215 Iil. 542, 74 N.E. 760; All-
day v. Cage (Tex.Civ.App.) 148 SW..
838; Councill v. Mayhew, 172 Ala. 295, 55 -
'So. 314; -Mullen v.:Johnson, 157 Ala. 262,
47 So. 584 Berst v..Moxom, 157 Mo.App..
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342, 138 S.W. 74; Burnett v. 'Smith, 93
Miss. 566,47 So. 117;  Dingman v. Romine,
141 Mo. 466, 42.S.W. 1087 ;- Franklin v, Belt,
130 Ga. 37,60 S.E. 146; Francis v. Wilkin-
son, 147 Il 370, 35 N.E. 150; Wilcoxon v.

Wilcoxon, 165 T11. 454,.46 N.E. 369;-Marx

v.- MeGlynn, 88 N.Y. 357, .370; Du Bose v.

Kell, 90 S.C. 196, 71 S.E. 371; Woodville v.-
Woodville, 63 W.Va. 286, 60 S.E. 140, 144,

1 “In appeal ‘of Worrall, 110 Pa. 349, 1
A 380, 385, 765, it was held that, where a
conveyance was made by a weak and sickly

young man to a woman older than himself, .

and who had been to him as a -mother,
a presumption orose Hhat such coﬂveytmce
was obtained by undue mﬂuence (Em—
phasis supplied.) ° :

See Gardiner v. Goertner 110 Fla 377,
149 So. 186; Theus v.. Theus,’ 119 Fla.
190, 161 So.'76; Newman v, Smith, 77
Fla. 633, 667, 688 82 So. 236; Hamilton
v. Morgan 93 Fla. 311, 112 So, 80 ‘

Redfearn on Wiﬂs and Admini's;ti‘atidn" of

Estates in Florida at pages 60—62 para-r confidential,

graphs 46, 47 and 48, says:

“46. Undue 'Influence Defined—Infu-
erice to ‘be undué, so as to invalidate a
will, must amount to fear, over-persuasion,

force, or coercion to the extent of de-

stroying the free agency and will power of
the testator and must be operative on the
mind of the testator at the time the will

is executed, * Fn such a case, the will does’

not speak the wishes of the testator but
those of the person exercising the undue
influence.
is invalid, but fraud and undue influence
are not identical. Fraud defeats the true
wishes of the testator by deception, while
undue infliénce subjugates his will and

coerces him into acting contrary to: his

desires. Fraud is practiced through mis-
representations and. deceit; while undue
influence may- sometimes savor of deceit,

it may 'be exertéd. without any. actual
fraud’s being perpetrated on the testator.

and: without any: mzsrepreSéntatlons being - modific b earl - r of o
‘ .. who'drew it up is held ifsufficient to ‘over-

CIRIE "‘,3‘;,1“‘:,_:

made. to him.:/ M

P47, Undie! 'Inﬂuencea-ﬂ—Burden -of
Proof—When g lwill is presentéd for pro-
bate,! the: burd'enn of pnoof is” upon. thé
propbnent - to . establish .prima ! facie :‘the
formal execution' amnd attestation of the
will, | When 'stich proof *Has been made,
the burden shifts to the contestant. A
person who attacks a will on the ground
that it was procured by undue influence

necessarily admits, so far as this issue’is

concerned, that the-will is otherwise valid.
188 8O.—8

‘A will procured through fraud

If the will were not otherwise valid, there
would be no will to have been procured by
undue influence.. The burden .is on the
propounder 'to prove the formal execution
of the-will when it is presented for pro-.
bate; and, when such proof has been
made,:it-is presumed that the testator acted
freely and voluntarily in making his will,
The burden of proof is on the contestant to
prove the undue influence alleged by him.

%48, Proof—Admissibility of Evi-
dence.—~A very wide range of testlmony
is permissible on- the issue of undue in-
fluence. This is due ‘to the faét that
undué influence - seldom ' can be. shown
except. by circuinstantial -evidence.’ It re-
sults from the circumstances and-surround-
ings-.of the testator -and his .associations
with the person or.persons eéxercising the
undue - influence: For. this reason it is
proper,.on this issue, to consider the testa-
tor’s: dealings and associations * with the
beneficiaries; his habits, motives, feelings;
his strength or weakness of character; his
family, . secial, and business
relations; the reasonableness or unreason-
ableness :.of - the: will; his. mental and
physical condition at:the time the will was
made; his manner and conduct and gen-
llght on the issue raised by the charge of
undue influence.”

-In. Schouler on W1lls,.Exccutors and
Administrators - (6th Ed.) Volume 1, pages
386, 387, ‘par. 307, it was said:

‘_“307. Confidéntial Relatgons, .Part1c1pa-
tion in Execution of Will, A teétator ad-
judged competent to make a will may be
presumed to have known and intended its
contents.” Hence is "it that isolated and
disconnected circumstances are not per-
mitted to outweigh the usual presumption
of the'law that a person of intelligence
and capac1ty who executes a will does so
withogt - imposition "or ' undie influence.’
Thus, the ‘sinple: fact that the' later wilt’
modifiés’ an “earlier’ one’ in ‘favor of one!

come such a presumption.  Or, generally,
that the testator’s . draughtsman ‘or one
whose ‘advice :was sought by him, ‘was
made exéecutor or receives a legacy under

‘the will.

“In some States conﬁdent1a1 relationship
alone without showing actn_fe participation
in drawing a will is insufficient,’ and the
rule in some States goes so far as ‘to
hald- that ‘the burden remains on the con-
testant, dlthough the chief beneficiary was:
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in a confidential relation, and also was'

active at the execution of the will. How-
ever, it has been held that where a con-
fidential relation exists between the testa-
tor and legatee the activity of the legatee
in procuring the will imposes on - the pro-
ponents the burden of proving that it was
not the result of undue influence.”

The testimony shows that William H.
Gold, his wife Mrs. Gold, and their chil-
dren, Margaret Gold and Glenn W. Gold,
moved to Miami, Florida, from the State
of Minnesota, and William H. Gold began
the business of a dealer in mortgages and
lending money. - He had a number of em-
ployees in his business and his loans reach-
ed as much as $100,000 per month. He
obtained, when necessary, legal advice from
some five or six lawyers at the Miami bar,
but the legal services in the. case at bar
were performed by the firm of Kunkel &
White and by Mr. Kunkel of this firm.
William H. Gold’s firm ‘would make loans

for clients with money left with him for
the purpose and in 1931 Miss Mary A.:
Donnelly, a maiden lady above 70 years

of ‘age, became one of his clients.  She

had personal property -approximating -in:

value around $15,000 to $17,000. -

Miss Donnelly was a sister-intaw of

Richard Ashby, They moved from the

State of New York to Miami, Florida, after

the death of Mrs. Richard Ashby. = Miss
Donnelly made her home :for many years
with her sister, Mrs,. Ashby and husband.
She was considered- as a.member of the
family and continued to live in the home
after her sister’s (Mrs. Ashby) death,
where she was a housekeeper and com-

panion to her brother-in-law Richard Ash-.
Richard Ashby had accumulated prop-,

by.
erty, as shown by the record, approximat-

ing in value some $68,000, and it was in.

liquid form, He made provision for the
economic security of Miss Donnelly which
amounted to around $250 per month. Rich-

ard Ashby died when in the late eighties..

Richard Ashby became a client of Wil-
lHam H. Gold & Company during the year
1927 at Miami, Florida. He was then well
advanced in years. Gold made investments
for him and gained his.. confidence, as
shown by the following letter: _

-~ .. "May 31, 1932,
“Mr. William H. Gold
“Miami, Florida. -
“Dear Sir:

“In order to take good care of ‘my sister-:

in-law, Miss Mary Donnelly, who has been
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so faithful in attendance on ‘me during
many years, it is my desire and wish to
provide an additional income over and
above that provided in the Trust Agree-
ment now at The First Trust & Savings
Bank of Miami, Florida, of about Three
Thousand and no/100 ($300000) Dolldrs
per year. This will insure her $50'000
per month as long as she lives. '

“To do this, I wisk to hdve you iset
over and assign to the said Mary Donnelly
certain securities, consisting of One Hun-
dred Ninety Five (195) shares of Electric
Light Stock, Two Thousand Five Hundred
and no/100 ($2,500.00) Dollars electric
bond, Two Thousand and no/100 ($2,000.-
00) Dollars Dodge Bond, and Twe Thous-
and and no/100 ($2,000.00) Dollars Kréug-
er Toll Bond. At present rate of dividends
this would provide about One Thousand
Six ‘Hundred and no/ 100 ($1, 60000) Dol-
lars.

“In order to take care of the a.dd:t:onal
amount, I wish to assign to Mary Don- -
nelly three mortgages, ‘

“It is further understood that the income
f:jom these stocks, bonds and mortgages,
as long as I live shall come to me, and,
only go to her at the time of my death, and
it is further understood and agreed to by
Mary Donnelly that at the time of her
death, she will make proper pravisions so
that whatever funds have not been used
from the principal amount shall be re-
turned to my heirs in the same proportion
as provided for in the Trust Agreement
at the First Trust & Savings Bank, of
Miami, Florida, o .

“Yours very truly, Richard Ashby.”

The trust formerly placed with the First-
Trust & Savings Bank was transferred to-
William H. Gold. Miss Donnelly likewise
became a client of William H. Gold &
Company during the year 1931, She loved
money and believed Gold could make prof-
itable investments for her. Some of the
witnesses described her ‘as “pinch penny”.
In October, 1932, Walter S. Ashby came to
Miami and ‘took up his residence with his
father, Richard Ashby. . It was observed
that his father’s mind was unsound and the
court on March 1, 1933 adjudicated Rich-
ard S. Ashby insane and appointed his
children, viz.: Walter .S. Ashby and Lil-

" lian Ashby Gaby, guardians of their fa-

ther's estate. They immediately demanded
of William Gold all property of their fa-
ther in his possession. Gold refused to de-
liver the property and suit was filed -when
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possession was surrendered. - He had the
assigniments of the mortgages in favor of
Miss Donnelly recorded and there was re-
tained for -her the Magnant mortgage for
$6,200 and $1,300 in cash.” The final de-
cree restrained Gold from visiting, calling
upon, disturbing, or discussing with Rich-
ard Ashby the several business transactions,
The court denied him attorney’s fees and
expensés connected - with the said suit.
Richard Ashby died shortly after the entry
of . the- final decree, supra. ;

- Miss Donnelly 'had no’ living reIatmns
and continued as a client: of William H.
Gold, whose daughter visited her daily and
administered to her on each trivial request,
(Gold wrote her reporting favorable returns
from her investments with him. On Oc-
tober 30, 1933, Gold wrote Miss Donnelly
as, _:follows L.

“W11ham H' Gold Company

“1010-11 Secunty Building .

“Miami, .Florida _. ,
“0ctober 30, 1933

"MISS Mary A. Donnelly,

334 N. E. 22nd Street, . ., o

i MMiami, Florida. 7.
“Dear Miss Donnelly.

" “Mrs. Gold was telling me that you and
she discussed the matter of the Will that
you haveé ‘been thmkmg of 'for some titne,
At orie time T thitik yoit' made mention of
the fact that you  wanted to have an’ at-
torney prepare a will for yoir, 'If you are
still ‘of this mind, we:would: be very glad
indeed to have Mr; R, E. Kunkel meet you
here in our oﬁice and advise. a]ong these
lines. - AT

“For your informatlon, I wish to state
that Margarct and myself have drawn a
number of quite complicated wills - right
here in our officé and have sufficient expe-
tience that we would be glad to do the same
for you if you wish. - I am asking Mar-
garet to stop at your place and talk' with
you about this and also leave in your pos-
session a copy of one pf these wills.. :

“Mrs. Graves, a lady about 85 years old,
whose business we lock after entirely.: You

'will -note” thdt just ;recently she made a

 That means that any 5?cordon, 192 Fla.i1110,|

¥l Tanipa E.iCo,:81-

" Codicil tor the will,
time youwant to- change any will you make,
it isa s:mple imatter- te rhiake the change,
and add it to the- ongmal will, or wnte a
new one.

“Not long ago we made up 'tWO""wills',
one for: Mr. Q. H.::Johnson and one for
Mrs. Johnson, another for Mr. Campbeil,
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and orie for Mrs. Church, our neighbor in
Coral Gables. Attorneys usually charge a
good substantial figure for drawing these
wills. We do it gratis, for our friends, and
clients..., Occasionally some of them give
Margaret a small remuneration.

“All you will need to do is to decide how
you want to dispose of the property, then
we will map it out,’ fix it up and turn it
over to you and then if you are not quite
satisfied, ‘we can call our attorney and get
his opinion on. it for you.

“Sincerely yours,
“WHG/G e [ngned] Wm GoId r
"Encl T

" On November 1Sth 1933, after i receiving
the letter, supra, Miss Donnelly made her
will. “The attorney draftmg the same rep-
resented Gold in the suit brought by the
chﬂdren_of Richard. Ashby. He was paid
the sum’ of $100 by Gold after Miss Don-
nelly’s death. His name was stated in the

-letter, supra. The Will as drawn gave Miss

Donnelly’s property to William Gold, Mrs.
Gold, Margaret Gold, while the son Glenn
W. Gold was miade exécutor without bond.
Mrs. Clara Hunt and Mrs. Gussie Budge,
friends of many years, were each given the
sum of $2) 000 She dxed on Novmber 7
1934 S

thn ev1dence was taken before Hon-
orable W. F, Blanton, County Judge of
Dade . County, and the court was inquiring
into the question of undue influence on Miss
.Dormel]y, William F. Gold was offered as
a_witness; a.Iso his daughter, Margaret
Gold his son, Glenn' W. Gold, the attorneys
for William H. Gold, Mrs, Gussie Budge,
a heneficiary, and her husband

The attending physician of sts Donnel-
ly, without objection of counsel, gave evi-
dence as to the condition of her mind dur-
ing .the period: wh1le she was under his
treatment. It appear$ that the physician
and the nurse were the only material wit-
nesses -offered .having no- interest in the
property affected by the will. The burden
was on the appellant to show that the find-
ings of the order or'decree appealed from
was erroneous. . See 'Wang v.. First Nat'l
Bank, 92 Fla, 974, 110°86.'537; Randel v,

111 S0.13863° Stevens '

Ta. 512, 88: So.7303;
Wobds-Hoskins- Young Co. v. Taylor De-
velopment Co., 98 Fla. 156, 122 So. 224
Howard v. Goodspeed 101 Fla. .699, 135
So. 294; . Foxworth v. Maddox, 103. Fla.

32,137 So. 161; Turnipseed v. Brown, 102

Fla. 542, 136 So. 343; ‘Jacksonville Proper-
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ties v. Manhattan Beach Co.,
136 So. 506.

"This Court has repeatedly held that in
equity as in law every presumption is in
" favor of the correctness of the ruling of
the trial court and a decree-based largely
or solely on questions of fact will not be
disturbed unless clearly - erroneous. . See
Viser v. Willard, 60 Fla. 395, 53 So.-501;
Powell v, Powell, 77 Fla. 181, 81 So. 105;
Whidden v. Rogers, 78 Fla. 93, 82 So. 611;
Sandlin v. Hunter Company, 70 Fla. 514,
70 So. 553.

It is strongly argued here that M1ss
Donnelly at the time of making her will
was bitter toward the “Ashby tribe”. She
had been made a paity to the suit by the
Ashby children in their effort to force Gold
to release and surrender something like
$6800 worth of securities delivered by
Richard Ashby to him. Reasonable in-
ferences are found in the testimony about
her prejudice and bitterness being traced
directly or indirectly to Gold, He was not
restrained by a court order from contact-
ing this aged woman, but had been as
against Richard Ashby then 80 years. of
age. He and the members of his family
were very attentive to. Miss Donnelly. . He
kissed Miss Donnelly’s hand on several
visits to her “when his wife was present”.
He and other members of his family ‘had
drawn complicated wills for other old
people. He was not a lawyer but a money
lender and dealer in mortgages We think
there is ample testimony in the record to
sustain the decree appealed from. ' See
Sandlin v. Hunter Company, 70 Fla. 514,
70 So. 553; Travis v. Travis, 81 Fla, 309,
87 So. 762; ILucas v. Wade, 43 Fla 419,
3t So. 231.- :

The decree appealed from is afﬁrmed

102 Fla. 839

ELLIS, C. J. apd WHITFIELD T,
CONCHr,

BROWN and BUFORD,_IJ., dissent

On Rehéaring. .

THOMAS Justice.-

The last will and testament of Mary
A.-Donnelly was admitted :to-probate’ by
the county judge of Dade County the thir-
teenth of November nineteen thirty-four.
In it testatrix made bequests to Mrs. Gus-
sie: Budge and Mrs. Clara Hunt, friends
of long standing, and to J. Winifred Gold,
Margaret. Gold, William I, Geld. (residu-

‘dren.
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ary legatee) or in the event of his death,
Glenn W. Gold. The latter was named
executor.

A few months later, Walter S. Ashby
and others petitioned thé county judge to
revoke his action in allowing the probate
of the will, claiming the same to have been
executed when the testatrix was of un-
sound mind, and charging that it was the
result of fraud and undue influence en the
part of the fesiduary legatee.

A will bearing date of March 17, 1924,
was alleged to be the :true last testamen-
tary d1spos1t10n of Ma.ry A, Donnellys
property.

Upon these issues the judge heard the
testimony of witnesses irtroduced by the
proponents and contestants, and demed
the petition.

The Circuit. Court reviewed the ruling
on appeal and disagreed with the County
Judge, so the matter was presented here on
an appeal from an order of reversal. Aft-
er 'decision of affirmance by th:s court a
rehearing was granted.

A study of the record has revealed that
testatrix was an elderly woman, who had
for many years served as housekeeper for
Richard Ashby, the widower- of her de-
ceased sister. Ashby and testatrix’ sis-
ter had no. children but the former, who
died in the year nineteen thirty-three, was
survived by two children and three grand-
children, the issue of his first marriage.

In May, nineteen thirty-two, Richard
Ashby addressed a letter to William H.
Gold, instructing him' to. assign.to Mary
Donnelly certzin securities to insure her
an .income after Ashby’s death and uwpon
her demise they were to be delivered to
Ashby’s heirs.

About a year later, Ashby was declared
insane’ in' proceedings, ‘according to some
of the testimony, instigated by his. chil-
In the same year, 1933, a decree
was entered ordering Mary A, Donnelly
to deliver to the guardians of ‘Ashby the
securities theretofore mentioned in Ashby’s
instructions to Gold.

The ‘respective dates of the final order
in the lunacy petition, the decree order-
ing return of the securities and the execu-
tion'of the will- involved in this contest
were: March first, -April twenty—ninth
and November fifteenth, all in the year
nineteen thirty-three.

It is strenuously and forcefully argued
that, in the . disposition of her worldly
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goods, Mary A. Donneily was unduly in-
fluenced by William - Gold . and that -the
effectiveness of his; selfish efforts to in-
gratiate himself was reflected in the provi-
sions of her testament ‘giving his family
and- him genetous bequests, in fact all of
her estate, except the 1egac1es to two old
frjends . e

[1] This, of course, was a c1rcumstance_

r:ghtfu]ly considered with afl of the other
facts in the case, and by itself might raise
suspiciont that Gold showed testatrix much
attention during the years immediately
preceding her death, thereby profiting be-
<ause of the tractability of an aged per-
son. :

It was argued, too, that by his activity
in procuring some one to draft her will he
showed inordinate interest in her affairs
and that this was further evidence of his
exercise of undue mﬂuencc over her.

In Theus v. Theus, 119 Fla, 190, 161
So. 76, the court said that a will would not
be rendered invalid because the sole bene-
ficiaty arranged its tirépa'ration and execu-
tion, nor would such_fact raise the pre-
sumption of undue 1nﬂuence It was stat-
ed that this would ‘arouse “suspicious
scrutiny™.
that such an mterest on the part of a
beneficiary is but a suspicious ~circum-
stance to be considered with all other hap-
penings throwing light on the will-and -in-
tent of the testatrix when the’ lnstrument
was signed by her,

Undue mﬂuence ha.s been treated by the
court repeatedly, but it seems proper to re-
fer to these decisions again here. In New-
man v. Smith, 77 Fla. 633, 82 So. 236, is
found this exposition:

“Undue influence compréhends  over<
persuas:on, coerciof, or force that destroys
or hampers the free agency and will pow-
er of the testator, Mere affection or at-
tachment, or a desire to gratify the wishes
of ‘one beloved, respected, and trusted, may
not, of itself, amount to undue influcnice
affecting “the ‘testaténtary capacity of ‘a
testator.
due and improper influence dpes not arise
from the mere exlstence of interegt oF op-‘
portunity to | exert . such infl lyenge.”. 77
Fla. 666, 82 So text 246 _ ;

And, in Peacock v. DuBons 90 Fla 162
105 .So. 321, the. following quotation - from
Howard v. Farr 115 Minn. 86, 131 NW.
1071:

In other words, we understand

Ordinarily a presuthptiod 8¢ #ni”

*To . constitute  ‘undue influence,’ the
mind must be so controlled or affected by
persuasion or pressure, artful or fraudu-
lent contrivances, or by the insidious in-
fluences of persons in close confidential re-
lations with him, that he is not left to act
intelligently, understandmgly, and volunta-
rily, but subject to the 'will or purpose of

" andthef” 90 Fla 165, 105 So. 321, text 322.

The. degree of mﬂuence which is con-
sideréd necessary to invalidate a will was
also - enunciated in - Peacock v. DuBois,
supra,” wherein this statement appears at
page-322 of 105 So 4 e

“The rule seems to be weIl setﬂed that
undue influence justifying the setting aside
of will, deed, or other contract must be
such’as to dethrone the free agency of-the
person ‘making it and rendering his act
the product of the will of anotherinstead
of his own. The character of the trans-
action, the mental condition of the person
whose. act is in question, and the relation-
ship of the parties concerned to_each oth-,
er, are all-elements, that may be taken into
consideration:in applying the rule. John-
son v, Farrell, 215 1Il. 542, 74 N.E. 760;
AIlday v..Cage (Tex.Civ.App.)- 148 S.W.
838; Councill v. Mayhew, 172 Ala, .295,
55 So 314; Mullen v.:-johnson, 157 Ala.
262, 47 So. 584 Berst v. Moxom, 157 Mo,
App. 342, 138 S.W. '74; ‘Burnett v. :Smith,
93 Miss. 566, 47 So. 117; Dingman v.
Romine, 141 Mo. 466, 42 S.W. 1087;
Franklin v, Belt, 130 Ga. 37, 60 S.E. 146;
Francis v. Wilkinson, 147 Ill.. 370, 35 N.
E. 150; Wilkoxon.v., Wilcoxon,- 165 Il

-454, 46 N.E.; 369; Marx v. McGlynn, 88

N.Y. 357, 370; DuBose v. Kell, 90 S.C.
196, 71 S.E. 371; Woodyville v. Woodville,.
63 W.Va. 286, 60 S.E. 140, 144>

See, also, Marston v. Churchill, 187 So.
762, just decided by this Court and not
yet Reported [in State Reports]. There
is ‘a’ distinct similarity between the facts
in Marston v. Churchiil, supra, and those
in the instant -case. :

We reiterate that | ithe ~ county judge
éard. lhe withesées in'ithe " corifest’ and,

hetefore, had ‘the opporturuty ito' .observe

‘Qhexﬂ”dbmeanor on -the stand,!“"Thus he

Itad 'a great advantage over théi learned
dircuit judge, who had to rely on the

" printed record to learn the truth about the

transactlon

[2] The court-has rulcd that -the con-
clusion of the probate court on conﬂlctmg



11§ Fla
eviderice will not be disturbed unless the
legal effect of the proof has heen misap-
prehended or there is a lack of ~evidence
to support the findings. Hooper v. Stokes,
107 Fla. 607, 145 So. 855, 146 So. 668;

. Parker v. Penny, 95 Fld, 922, 117 So. 703.

. [3} . The right. to dispose of property
by last will and testament should be care-
fully guarded, and the courts should be
reluctant  to undo after death what the
testator in life sought to accomplish by
naming those whom he wished to inherit.
Doubtless,  this™ sentiment - actuated . the

court in announcing that such instruments:

wotld be l_xpheld un_l_css it clearly appeared:

‘#yhat .the free use ang exercise of a
‘sound mind’ * * * was * * * pre-

vented hy deception, undue 'influence, or
other means * * * _otherwise the right
given by * * * statute * * * would
be thwarted”. Newman v. Smith, Supra,
77 Fla. 648, 82 So. text 241. .

[4] We have referred to the suspicious
circumstance of the beneficiary having ar-

ranged for the execution of the' will where-

by he and members of his family received
almost the entire estate of the decedent,
Thete * was - considerable testimony that
despite this “activity on the part of the
residuary beneficiary, the disposition was
utterly hatural and free from the taint ‘of
undue influence, - Gold and his family had
shown Mary A."Donnelly much attention.

She had been angered by the action of the.
contestant heirs in having Ashby -declar-

ed insane. Her long association with Ash-
by was probably the reason for consider-
ing them entitled to:her bounty. When,
by their treatment of him, she was es-
tranged it was not unnatural that she de-
cided to ignore them in her will, any sen-
timental connection with them having been
destroyed. - Further-support of this theory
is found in the evidence of the suit to force
Gold to disgorge the securities which he
held, including those from which she would
benefit under instructions to Gold from
Ashby. I ,
This is unquestionably . the story the
county judge believed, Against it he pre-

sumably, weighed the testimony tending to.

show that Gold brought influence to bear
upon testatrix, substituted his will for hers
while he seryed in a representative capac-
ity, with the result that he profited while
the contestants, heirs of a man to whom
her sistér had been married, lost.
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The judge who' conducted the originak
trial had the power to make the compari-
son and if he found that the contestants”
proof was outweighed by that of pro-
ponent, his decision, it . the absence .of
misapprehension, should not have been dis-
turbed by the able circnit judge.

Our examination leads us to believe that
there. was ample evidence to substantiate
the original order and that it should not
have been disturbed.

The order of the circuit court is revers-
ed, . ‘ .

" TERRELL, C. J., and BROWN and BU-
FORD, JJ., concur.

gént.

- WHITFIELD and CHAPMAN, JJ, dis-

.. .DRIGGERS ¥. STATE. . .

" Supreme Court of Florida, Diviston A. "
. CApril 11, 1939,

Rehearing Denied May 19, 1939,

I. Criminal law €&=165. . . I
- Common-law and constitutional prohibi-
tion against “double jeopardy” refers not to
the same offense eo nomine but to the same
crime, transaction or omisslon, the test he-
ing whether defendant has been twice in
jeopardy, and nof whether he has been tried.
before for the same act. S
[Bd. Note—For other. definitions of
“Teopardy,” see Words & Fhrases.] '

2. Crimina] law €=292(2) ;
Allegations of plea in bar that ‘accused
had been acquitted of stealing a cow, which
was same animal described in information
charging stealing of a calf, ralsed lssue of
double jeopardy as against demurrer, not-
withstanding that first information described
stolen animal as & cow and second informa-
ticn described it as a calf. .
8 Criminaf faw &=186
" Where there has been an acquittal or
conviction of the charge of larceny of an
animal of a certain specles, from named
owner, & second prosecution for the larceny
of the same animal, described In another
way, from the same owner is barred.



